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O f f i c i a l  N a m e :  
Republic of Kenya

Geography - Area: 
5 8 0 , 3 6 7  s q .  k m .  
(224,080 sq mi.);

C i t i e s :  C a p i t a l - -
Nairobi (pop. 2.9 
million; 2007 est.). 
O t h e r  c i t i e s - -
Mombasa (828,500; 
2006 est.), Kisumu (650,846; 2005-6), Nakuru 
(1.3 million; 2005-6), Eldoret (193,830; 1999).

Location: Kenya lies astride the equator in 
Eastern Africa between  Somalia and Tanzania 
and bordering the Indian Ocean. 

Size: The total area of 582,650 square kilometers 
(somewhat larger than France) includes 13,400 
square kilometers of water, mainly  in Lake 
Turkana (also known as Lake Rudolf) and Kenya's 
portion  of Lake Victoria. 

Land Boundaries: Kenya's land boundaries total 
3,477 kilometers. The country is bounded by 
Ethiopia (861 kilometers), Somalia (682 
kilometers), Sudan (232 kilometers), Tanzania 
(769 kilometers), and Uganda (933 kilometers). 

Length of Coastline: Kenya has 536 kilometers of 
coastline on the Indian Ocean. 

Terrain: Kenya rises from a low coastal plain on 
the Indian Ocean in a series of mountain ridges 
and plateaus which stand above 3,000 meters 
(9,000 ft.) in the center of the country. The Rift 
Valley bisects the country above Nairobi, opening 
up to a broad arid plain in the north. Highlands 
cover the south before descending to the shores 
of Lake Victoria in the west.

Climate: Tropical in south, west, and central 
regions; arid and semi-arid in the north and the 

northeast.

Nationality: Noun and 
adjective-Kenyan(s).

Type: Republic.

I n d e p e n d e n c e :  
December 12, 1963.

Population (August 
2010 est.): 39 million.

Major ethnic groups: 
Kikuyu 6.6 mil l ion,  

Luhya 5.3 million, Luo 4 million, Kalenjin 5 million, 
Kamba 3.9 million, Kisii 2.2 million, Mijikenda 1.9 
million.

Religions: Christian 82.6%, Muslim 11.2%, 
traditional African religions 5%, Hindu/ Sikh/ 
Baha'i / Jewish 1%.

Languages: English (official), Swahili (National), 
over 40 other languages from the Bantu, Nilotic, 
and Cushitic linguistic groups.

Education: First 8 years of primary school are 
provided tuition-free by the government. In January 
2008, the government began offering a program of 
free secondary education, subject to some 
restrictions. Attendance-92% for primary grades. 

Adult literacy rate: 74%.

Health: Infant mortality rate-57.4/1,000.

Time Zone:  Standard Time (GMT + 3). 

Life expectancy: 55.3 yrs (2007 est.).

Principal Rivers: Kenya's principal rivers are the 
710-kilometer-long Tana, and the Athi, both 
flowing southeast to the Indian Ocean. Other 
rivers include the Ewaso Ngiro, flowing northeast 
to the swamps of the Lorian Plain, and the Nzoia, 
Yala, and Gori, which drain into Lake Victoria. 

Constitution: 1963; new constitution approved 
in an August 4, 2010 referendum.

 am happy to learn that our INDO-AFRICAN ICHAMBER OF COMMERCE & INDUSTRIES is bringing 
out a “Special Supplement” to commemorate 49th 
National Day of “Kenya”

The traditional linkages between India & Kenya are 
rooted in the similarity of our struggle for 
Independence, Equality, Human Rights, Freedom & 
Democracy.

We are neighbours across the Indian Ocean.

Kenya is known as “The Cradle of Humanity”

In present day, Kenya's ethnic diversity has produced a 
vibrant culture.

Kenya is one of the most industrialized countries in 
East Africa. There is a growing trade around U.S. $ 1.5 
Billion & Investment Partnership.

Indian firms have been investing in Kenya in 
Telecommunications, Petrochemicals & Chemicals, 
Flouriculture etc.

India has enjoyed close, cooperative & multisectoral 
partnership encompassing political, economic, 
science & technology, human resource development, 
cultural & other areas of mutual interest.

I compliment & congratulate our Dyanamic Hon. 
Consul General of Kenya Mr. R. A. Goenka who really 
puts in lots of efforts in promoting Indo-Kenya 
Bilateral trade relationship.

K. L. Daga, President

enya is known as Gateway to 
Africa, famous Kfor wild life K

& African Safari, blessed with 
warm & sunny climate & having a population of about 
35million, a good tourist destination. Kenya Airways 
being the official airways not only caters to travelers to 
Nairobi but also to other destinations in African 
Continent & Europe as well. The best time to travel 
Kenya is April to June for holidays.

Kenya’s major trading partners are the COMESA and 
EAC members, the European Union, Japan, the United 
Arab Emirates and the United States. It is the largest 
single exporter to the EAC and COMESA.

Geographically, Kenya is well placed to be the financial 
and air transport hub of the region, making the 
country an ideal investment destination for investors 
targeting regional markets. The country’s strategic 
location provides easy access to the EAC market, with 
a population of over 93 million, and COMESA, with a 
population of 385 million.

In March 2004, Kenya, together with Tanzania and 
Uganda, signed the East African Community Customs 
Union Protocol, which came into force in January 2005. 
This agreement is a major breakthrough in establishing 
the region as a single market and investment area. The 
Protocol makes provisions that bind Kenya, Tanzania 
and Uganda to remove existing barriers to trade (tariff 
and nontariff) in order to move towards the institution 
of a full free trade regime in five years. The Protocol 
provides for a three-band external tariff (0% for raw 
materials, 10% for intermediate goods and 25% for 
finished goods).

Membership in the African, Caribbean and Pacific 
States (ACP) and the Generalised System of 
Preferences (GSP) enables eligible agricultural 
products from Kenya to qualify for preferential tariffs 
on exports to member countries. Kenya also has access 
to the US market, provided by the African Growth and 
Opportunity Act (AGOA).

Kenya is also a member of the World Bank’s 
Multilateral Investment Guarantee Agency (MIGA), 
which offers insurance against non-commercial risk, 
and of the International Centre for the Settlement of 
Investment Disputes (ICSID) between foreign investors 
and the Government.

The country’s legal system is flexible, and investors 
have a choice of entry mechanisms. The most common 
methods of investing in Kenya include the setting up of 
a new corporate body, a joint venture with existing 
investors, and the acquisitionof the whole or part of an 
existing local company. 

Tourism is another major opportunity area. Kenya has 
substantial natural assets for tourism: wellknown ones 
like the Maasai Mara and the Mombasa coast, as well 
as relatively unexploited areas like Lake Victoria and 
the Rift Valley. It also has a well-developed tourism 
infrastructure. In 2003, the number of international 
visitors exceeded 1 million. It is a substantial advantage 
in this context that Nairobi is a major air transport hub 
in Africa, with direct flights from many tourism source 
countries, and with good internal connections, 
including some 60 Nairobi-Mombasa flights a week on 
Kenya Airways alone.

Sunanda Rajendran, Secretary General

From the Desk of Secretary General
Indo-African Chamber of Commerce & Industries

Message

R.A. GOENKA
Hon Consul to the Republic of Kenya

MESSAGE

JAMBO
GREETINGS FROM CONSULATE OF KENYA, MUMBAI

I would like to congratulate the Indo-African Chamber of 
Commerce and Industries for the “Special Supplement” 
brought out on Kenya to celebrate its 49th National Day. 
(12.12.2012). I extend my best wishes to the chamber for its 
remarkable achievements and timeless efforts.

Kenya is the first country in the whole of Africa where the first 
Indian Diplomatic mission started in the year 1948. Our first 
High Commissioner late Appa Pant had extended full and open 
support to Kenya's freedom struggle. Since 1981 both India and 
Kenya have agreed to accord each other the MOST FAVOURED 
NATION STATUS.

Kenya is increasingly becoming an attractive investment 
destination for Indian companies. Engineering, Automobiles, IT, 
Telecoms, Pharmaceuticals and services such as banking are 
most targeted by Indian investors looking at the country. There 
is investment potential in the healthcare, education and 
tourism sectors in the Kenya.

Wageni. Mwakaribishwa. Kenya yetu Hakuna Matata (meaning, 
Foreigners, you're welcome. In our Kenya there is no problem).

R.A. GOENKA
Hon. Consul to the Republic of Kenya

CONSULATE OF KENYA
46, Bajaj Bhavan, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

Tel : +91-22-22029022 / 22029130 / 22027370
Fax : +91-22-22850352 | Email : kenyaconsulate@hotmail.com

KENYA... AT A GLANCE

ECONOMY

GDP (2010 est.): $32 billion.

Annual growth rate (2010): 5.4%.

Gross national income per capita (2008, Atlas 
Method): $780.

Overview: Kenya has one of Africa's worst performing 
economies, notwithstanding a pick-up of economic 
growth in the past three years. The economy is market-
based, with some state-owned infrastructure 
enterprises, and maintains a liberalized external trade 
system. The economy's heavy dependence on rain-fed 
agriculture and the tourism sector leaves it vulnerable 
to cycles of boom and bust. The agricultural sector 
employs nearly 75 
p e r c e n t  o f  t h e  
country's 37 million 
people. Half of the 
sector's output remains 
s u b s i s t e n c e  
production. 

Kenya's gross domestic 
product (GDP) growth 
r a t e  d e c l i n e d  
continuously from a 
peak of about 6.5 
percent per year during 
the first decade after 
independence to less than 4 percent per year in the 
following decade, to only about 1.5 percent per year 
during the 1990s. It has experienced an upturn to more 
than 5 percent per year since 2004. Several decades of 
declining economic performance, combined with rapid 
population growth, translated over time into reduced 
income per head, increased poverty, and worsening 
unemployment. Between the 1970s and 2000, the 
number of Kenyans classified as poor grew from 29 
percent to about 57 percent. 

Kenya's economic performance has been hampered 
by numerous interacting factors: heavy dependence 
on a few agricultural exports that are vulnerable to 
world price fluctuations, population growth that has 
outstripped economic growth, prolonged drought that 
has necessitated power rationing, deteriorating 
infrastructure, and extreme disparities of wealth that 
have limited the opportunities of most to develop their 
skills and knowledge. Poor governance and corruption 
also have had a negative impact on growth, making it 

expensive to do business in Kenya. According to 
Transparency International, Kenya ranks among the 
world's half-dozen most corrupt countries. Bribery and 
fraud cost Kenya as much as US$1 billion a year. 
Kenyans, 23 percent living on less than US$1 per day, 
pay some 16 bribes a month—two in every three 
encounters with public officials. Another large drag on 
Kenya's economy is the burden of human 
immunodeficiency virus/acquired immune deficiency 
syndrome (HIV/AIDS). 

Prospects brightened somewhat under the Kibaki 
government, whose policy aims include budgetary 
reforms and debt restraint.  Despite early 
disillusionment with the government, the economy has 

seen a broad-based expansion, 
led by strong performance in 
t o u r i s m  a n d  
t e l e c o m m u n i c a t i o n s ,  a n d  
acceptable post-drought results 
in agriculture, especially the vital 
tea sector. Nevertheless, risks to 
continuing robust growth remain, 
including weak infrastructure, 
drought, political instability in the 
run-up to the December 2007 
elections, and diminution of 
financial flows from donors 
because of ongoing corruption 

allegations. 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP): In 2006 Kenya's GDP 
was about US$17.39 billion. Per capita GDP averages 
somewhat more than US$450 annually. Adjusted in 
purchasing power parity (PPP) terms, per capita GDP in 
2006 was about US$1,200. The country's real GDP 
growth picked up to 2.3 percent in early 2004 and to 
nearly 6 percent in 2005 and 2006, compared with a 
sluggish 1.4 percent in 2003 and throughout President 
Moi's last term (1997–2002). Real GDP is expected to 
continue to improve, largely because of expansions in 
tourism, telecommunications, transport, and 
construction and a recovery in agriculture. The Kenya 
Central Bank forecast for 2007 is between 5 and 6 
percent GDP growth. GDP composition by sector, 
according to 2004 estimates, was as follows: 
agriculture, 25.7 percent; manufacturing, 14.0 percent; 
trade, restaurants, and hotels, 13.8 percent; transport 
and communications, 6.9 percent; government 
services, 15.6 percent; and other, 24.0 percent.

s  w e  c e l e b ra t e d  Ke ny a ' s  4 9 t h  AIndependence Day on December 2012, 
Kenya is a favourable destination for investors 
from India. 

From the onset, let me say that Kenya has a 
vibrant economy and offers various 
opportunities to different categories of 
investors. The economy has had steady growth 
rate since our current President, Hon. Mwai 
Kibaki, took over in the year 2003. He took over 
when the economy had negative growth rate 
but steadily the economy has been growing 
reaching impressive growth rate of 7% in 2007. 
However, in 2008 there was a decline due to 
global financial crisis but as the global crisis 
eased, our economy growth rate picked up 
reaching 5.6% in 2010.

This year, it had been projected to grow at the 
rate of around 6% but this has been revised to 
around 5% due to the present unfavourable 
global economic climate. It is hoped, as the 
latter eases, Kenya will continue its steady 
growth.

Our country is guided in its strategic plans by 
Vision 2030. The thrust of the Vision is to be a 
newly industrialized middle income country by 

2030. If the global economic climate improves, 
and our growth rate continues, reaching 10% 
by 2030, our vision will be achievable. I 
therefore invite the various categories of 
investors to explore the various opportunities 
that exist and invest in Kenya. It will be nice to 
have you as our success story as we strive to 
achieve our Vision 2030. 

I also wish to appreciate the remarkable and 
dedicated work of Mrs. Sunanda Rajendran, 
Secretary General of Indo-African Chamber of 
Commerce and Industries. It is through her 
foresight and good planning skills that, we have 
had very successful conferences/seminars 
o r ga n i ze d  b y  t h e  C h a m b e r.  Ke ny a  
bus inessmen/ investors  have  a lways  
participated in most of these fora and I must 
say have benefited a great deal. Their 
invitations have always been sent by the 
Secretary General and on their behalf, I am 
very grateful for the honour. 

Amb. Prof. Festus Kaberia, PhD, 0GW 
HIGH COMMISSIONER

MESSAGE

MAP OF KENYAMAP OF KENYA

Government working hours:
8.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m., Monday to Friday, 

with a one-hour lunch break.

Private-sector working hours:
8.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m., Monday to Friday, 

with a one-hour lunch break.
Most private-sector organizations also 

work half days on Saturday.

Banking hours:
9.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m., Monday to Friday, 

and 9.00 a.m. to 11.00 a.m. on the first and 
last Saturday of the month for most banks.

Shopping hours:
Most shops are open from 8.00 a.m. to 

6.00 p.m. on weekdays. Some are also open 
during weekends from 9.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m.

BUSINESS HOURS

Estd. 1985
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Areas of opportunity

AGRICULTURE

Agricultural support:

HORTICULTURE: 

AGRO-PROCESSING:

POULTRY PRODUCTS:

FISHERIES: 

LEATHER AND LEATHER GOODS:

LIVESTOCK: 

Kenya has a number of advantages as a location for investment: 
uninterrupted political stability since independence, a strategic 
location with easy access to regional and world markets, and a 
substantial and varied private sector. Following the peaceful 
political transition in 2002, the Government of Kenya prepared 
an Economic Recovery Strategy for Wealth and Employment 
Creation for the period 2003–2007, which is meant to address 
deficiencies in governance and infrastructure and make the 
country more attractive to investors.

The country has a surface area of 582,646 square kilometres, of 
which around three quarters is arid and semi-arid land. The 
remainder, however, is well suited to agriculture and 
demonstrably productive. The country lies on both sides of the 
equator and varies in altitude from sea level to more than 5,000 
metres above sea level (Mount Kenya). In the lowlying districts, 
particularly along the coast, the climate is tropical, hot and 
humid. On the plateau and in the highlands, it is more temperate.

Agriculture and related activities (horticulture, tea, coffee, 
pyrethrum, livestock, sugar, cotton, oil crops, fishery) and 
tourism are the areas in which the Government most wants to 
attract FDI. Other areas with investment opportunities include 
mining (minerals and oil exploration), manufacturing for both 
the domestic and the regional markets (textiles and apparel, 
paper products, steel and iron, vehicle parts and assembly, 
electronics and electrical equipment, plastics, chemicals and 
pharma-ceuticals), infrastructure (port facilities, roads, 
waterways and waste management) and energy (hydropower 
and geothermal).

Agriculture is the mainstay of the economy, providing livelihood 
to approximately 75 percent of the population. There is 
considerable scope for diversification and expansion of the 
agricultural sector through accelerated food crop production 
and increase of non-traditional exports. There are also 
opportunities for improvement in technology infrastructure 
such as packaging, storage, and transportation. Intensified 
irrigation and additional value added processing are 
marketable areas for investments.

 investment opportunities exist in seed 
production, manufacture of sprayers and pesticides, veterinary 
services, construction of dams and bore holes, installation of 
irrigation systems and services. Opportunities also exist in 
support services, such as cold storage facilities and refrigerated 
transport for horticultural and other perishable products.

The horticulture sector is one of the fastest 
growing sectors in the economy and is the second largest 
foreign exchange earner after tea. Opportunities exist in 
production and export of products such as cut-flowers, French 
beans, pineapples, mushrooms, asparagus, mangoes, 
macadamia nuts, avocados, passion fruits, melons, and carrots.

Horticulture (including floriculture) is one of the great success 
stories of recent years. It has led exports, generated 
employment and attracted investment. There are now about 
250,000 hectares under horticulture, with annual production 
worth more than $600 million. Foreign investors (especially 
Dutch and British) have played a significant role in export 
successes, as the success depends substantially on contacts 
with European buyers, the ability to meet their demanding 
standards for safety and quality, and success in organizing 
logistics (see box III.1). Local smallholders have also played a 
significant role in this sector. Although their role is less 
important than it was 10 years ago, as the large commercial 
farms have grown in size and numbers, they still supply much of 
the produce through linkages with exporters, who have 
provided extension services. This labourintensive business has 
supported substantial employment in rural areas. Floriculture 
alone is estimated to employ some 50,000 people directly and a 
larger number indirectly. There are still many opportunities in 
this area. Kenya has no more than 1% of the EU-15 market share 
in edible vegetables and only 0.1% in edible fruits (UNCTAD 
forthcoming). The US market is almost unexplored, although 
that is mainly a function of the absence of direct flights from 
Kenya to the United States.

 Numerous investment opportunities exist 
in this sector. Edible and other oils produced locally include 
butter, ghee and margarine as well as sunflower, rapeseed, 
cottonseed, sesame, coconut and corn potential such as in the 
production of decaffeinated coffee for export.

Sugar production, at 402,000 tonnes per annum. Molasses, a 
by-product of sugar production, is processed into power 
alcohol, potable alcohol, and baker's yeast. There is also 
considerable potential for the expansion of chocolate and oils, 
while a large quantity of palm oil is imported. Investments to 
develop substitutes for palm oil imports are welcome.

Kenya produces excellent beer, utilizing locally grown barley. 
The country has recently developed papaya and grape wines 
that can be exported to regional and international markets. 
Opportunities exist in coffee roasting and grinding, with a 
further confectionery products for export. Opportunities for 
investment exist in the production and processing of sugar, tea, 
meat and dairy products.

 Hatcheries for the production of chicken 
for both domestic and regional consumption are under-
exploited.

Kenya's water resources of the Indian ocean and 
lake Victoria provide vast fishing potential. At present, deep sea 
fishing, prawn and trout farming are in their infancy but growing 
rapidly. Opportunities also exist in fish processing (filleting and 
fishmeal production), as well as fisheries-support 
infrastructure (refrigerated transport, cold storage, etc.). 

 Most hides and skins are 
processed up to the wet blue stage for export while investment 
opportunities exist in production of finished leather, offering 
potential for the manufacture of shoes and other leather 
products.

Investment opportunities exist in the rearing of 
livestock for meat  and dairy products. The dairy industry has 
been liberalized, providing new investment opportunities in milk 

processing for local and regional 
markets .  Non-convent ional  
livestock farming , for example, of 
ostrich and crocodile farming, 
represent an exciting new area of 
investment. Beekeeping and honey 
processing represent untapped 
potential in Kenya. 

THE DAIRY INDUSTRY:

OIL CROPS:

TOURISM

INFRASTRUCTURE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 

PORT FACILITIES:

EPZS AND RELATED MATTERS

 The dairy subsector contributes 3% of 
the GDP. It is regulated by the Kenya Dairy Board, which is a 
parastatal mandated to develop, promote and regulate the 
industry. Currently there is a cattle population of about 13 
million head, of which 3.3 million are dairy cattle and 9.7 million 
beef cattle (mainly zebu). Total annual milk production for 2003 
was 3.1 billion litres. Small-scale farmersnumbering close to 
625,000 produce 80% of the milk. 
This production depends on rain-
fed  agr icu l ture  and hence 
fluctuates, resulting in a surplus 
during the flush period from July to 
September. The inaccessibility of 
quality breeding services, animal 
health services and animal feeds 
has undermined the quality of the 
breeding stock.

Only 14% of the total production is 
marketed through milk-processing 
establishments, while 56% is 
marketed raw. There are 34 active 
milk processors that process close to 1 million litres per day, 
while the total capacity is estimated at 2.5 million litres per day. 
Kenya exports dairy products to the EAC region, East and Central 
Africa, Europe and the Middle East. The main export product is 
longlife (UHT) milk. Kenya has developed standards for all the 
dairy products produced within the EAC and COMESA regions. It 
is also among the developing countries from which EU member 
states are authorized to import milk and milk-based products.

 Kenya imports over 95% of its total edible oil 
requirements (mainly palm oil from Malaysia), which are 
estimated to be 200,000 tons and cost the country $90 million 
p.a. (IPC, 2001). Many oilseeds can be commercially grown in 
Kenya, but the main ones are sunflower, simsim, soya beans, 
rapeseed, coconut, castor and groundnuts.

A strong oilseed-processing industry would be needed to 
stimulate the local production of oilseeds and bring the installed 
capacities into full use. The Government has put into place fiscal 
measures to encourage the import of oilseeds as raw materials 
rather than processed products (crude and refined oils). 
Opportunities for investment include oil crop plantations, oil 
processing and high-quality packaging for export.

Tourism is Kenya's third largest foreign exchange earner. The 
tourism industry is growing as a result of the liberalization 
measures, diversification of tourist generating markets and 
continued government commitment to providing an enabling 
environment, coupled with successful tourism promotion and 
political stability. Enormous opportunities exist for investment 
in film production; recreation and entertainment facilities in the 
following areas:

• Conference tourism • Cultural tourism • Cruise ship tourism
• Aviation / tour and travel tourism • Eco-tourism

Potential investors can take full advantage of these 
opportunities or joint-ventures with Kenyan entrepreneurs. 
Opportunities also exist in this sector in the construction of 
tourist hotels and game lodges all over the country.

Kenya is a vast country with a wide range of potential tourist 
attractions, which have not been fully exploited. Currently, the 
tourism industry is mainly concentrated at the country's coastal 
area and in the national parks and game reserves. As a policy 
matter, the Government of Kenya is strongly committed to the 
regional diversification of this very important industry to other 
areas for some good reasons. Similarly, the potential for the 
domestic market has not been fully exploited. There is also need 
to identify other tourist attractions besides the existing national 
parks, game reserves and beaches. In order to extend the length 
of stay of 'safari' tourists in Kenya, emphasis will be put into the 
development of inland resorts situated close to the national 
parks and game reserves. It is noted that the main constraint to 
the development of such resorts has been lack of sufficient 
investment capital. Participation in such investment ventures 
will, therefore, be very much encouraged by the Government of 
Kenya in order to exploit the tourism potential in those areas.

The ongoing liberalization and 
privatization offer important investment opportunities to private 
investors, particularly in the information technology and 
telecommunications sectors. Investors processing the necessary 
skill in those sectors can form joint ventures, particularly for the 
provision of cellular phones and internet services.

• Development of broadband infrastructure;
• Software and hardware development
• Supply of equipment, technical and consultancy services.

 investment opportunities exist in the 
rehabilitation of berths to give them a new lease of life for 
efficient and economic operations. Investment opportunities 
are available in the conversion of berths at Mombasa port into 
container berths to cater for increased container traffic. 
Opportunities exist in the study and installation of modern 
information technology systems at Mombasa container 
Terminal to enhance the fluidity of container traffic movements. 
The Likoni  ferry in mombasa presents a major transportation 
bottleneck. ICDC intends to approach investors with the 
necessary technical know-how and finance to construct a road 
bypass to replace the Lokoni ferry.

• Rehabilitation of port services; • Management of port 
services; • Capacity building for the Kenya maritime authority;
• Supply of equipment, technical and consultancy services for 
marine engineering.

Export processing zones (EPZs): The EPZ Act (Chapter 517 of the 

Laws of Kenya) was passed in 1990 and created the Export 
Processing Zones Authority (EPZA) as the regulatory body. By 
2004, there were 36 EPZs in operation or under development. 
Most are close to Nairobi or Mombasa, with the largest at Athi 
River, 25 kilometres from Nairobi. The number of companies the 
EPZs attracted grew slowly to 18 by 1998 and then rose sharply 
as the African Growth and Opportunity Act (AGOA – see Box 

III.6) was passed by the US 
Congress in 2000. By 2004, there 
were 70 companies in the EPZs, 
employing 40,000 people. Most of 
these companies were in the 
garment industry, although the 
largest single investment is by a 
company in the currency and 
security printing business (De La 
Rue, $48 million).

The Kenyan EPZs offer investors a 
variety of advantages, including 
the fiscal incentives described 
b e l o w .  T h e y  a l s o  o f f e r  

administrative speed and simplicity (the single-licence facility) 
and superior infrastructure without the quality and reliability 
problems that can hamper investors elsewhere in Kenya.

Kenya has a well-developed construction industry. Quality 
engineering, building and architectural design services are 
readily available. This industry is currently on an upward trend 
following rehabilitation and reconstruction of roads and bridges 
under the El Nino Emergency Funds and Kenya Urban Transport 
Infrastructure Program. With increase in population, 
opportunities exist in the construction of residential, 
commercial and industrial building, including prefabricated low-
cost housing.

Extensive opportunities for investment exit particularly in the 
area of upgrading slum and informal settlements, urban 
renewal, construction of middle and low income housing, 
manufacture and supply of building materials and components. 
Rural  roads, especially feeder roads serving the country's main 
agricultural and also being prioritized to create employment 
and improve Kenyans incomes. Possibilities also exit through 
participation in concessioning and dueling of the Mombasa- 
Busia Hiighway on the North Corridor Programme. Transport 
linkages are to be established with neighbouring  Sudan and 
Ethiopia to open up markets for Kenyan goods. These initiatives 
provide opportunities for the provision of credit to construction 
companies.

Some of the recent project opportunities included:

• Road Construction (Visit www.publicworks.go.ke for recent 
tenders);
• Development of the rail link to South Sudan;
• Rehabilitation of Airports (Visit www.kenyaairport.com for 
more information);
• Development of Second Port at Lamu;
• Kenya-Uganda & regional pipeline extension (petroleum);
• Construction of upstream refinery;?Construction or 
upgrading of storage, distribution, and product handling 
facilities (Petroleum);
• Solar/ wind energy plants;
• Urban housing development by private and public sector.

Kenya's energy policy emphasizes the need for sustainable 
energy supplies in adequate quantities at effective cost, so as to 
achieve national development goals. The Policy also emphasizes 
delivery of quality energy services so as to ensure that Kenya will 
continue to Attract investments in those economic activities of 
which energy inputs are basic to production at competitive 
prices. The country is dependent mainly on three forms of 
energy; petroleum, electricity and wood-fuel. To a lesser extent 
wind, solar and biogas are used as alternative energy sources.

Petroleum is the major source of commercial energy in the 
country providing about 87 percent of the country's 
requirements. The transport sector consumes more than half of 
the petroleum fuels used in the country. Industry consumes 
some 31 percent of petroleum fuels.

Mining Kenya has well developed cement processing plants that 
satisfy the domestic market and export and exports to the 
regional market. Approximately 1.2 million tones of cement are 
consumed locally each year. Opportunities exit in the 
production of glass, as the country is not self sufficient. A few 
manufacturing units produce ceramic pottery and titles, 
however, substantial quantities of ceramic pottery, tiles, 
sanitary- ware and insulators are imported investment potential 
exist in prospecting and mining of other minerals such as gold, 
precious stones and petroleum.

Kenya's water resources of the Indian Ocean and 
Lake Victoria provide vast fishing potential. At Present, deep sea 
fishing, Prawn and trout farming are in their infancy but growing 
rapidly. Opportunity also exists in fish processing (Filleting and 
fish meal production), as well as fisheries- support 
infrastructure (refrigerated transport, cold storage, etc

In order to achieve sustained forest management, 
there will be a need to carry out a well- focused investment in 
the following areas:

• Forest Valuation
• Capacity building in resource assessment, planning and 
management, impact assessment, geographical information 
systems, monitoring and evaluation
• Research in non-wood tree productions to enhance their 

BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION

ENERGY SECTOR

OPPORTUNITIES IN ENVIRONMENT AND 

NATURAL RESOURCES

FISHERIES: 

FORESTRY: 

economic potential;
• Development of credit support to private forest investment
• Developing and improving marketing of forest products
• Modernisation of forest industries to improve efficiency
• Dry land sylviculture.

Manufacturing sector is an area where investment 
opportunities exist. Initially developed under the import 
substitution policy there has now been a shift to export 
oriented manufacturing as the thrust of Kenya's industrial 
policy. The sector plays an important role in adding value to 
agricultural output and providing forward and backward 
linkages, hence accelerating overall growth.

The manufacturing sector now comprises of more than 700 
established enterprises and employs directly over 218,000 
persons. A wide range of opportunities for direct and joint 
venture investments exist in the manufacturing sector, 
including agro processing, manufacture of garments, assembly 
of automotive components and electronics, plastics,  paper, 
chemicals Pharmaceuticals metal and engineering products for 
both domestic and export markets.

 Kenya has an integrated pulp paper mill 
plant producing paper and paper board from renewable forest 
products. Investment opportunities exist in the production of 
paper from other raw materials such as bagasse, sisal waste, 
straw and waste paper.

 Textile, Garment and Apparel 
manufacturing has a very high potential in Kenya. The basic 
material inputs such as dyes and chemicals are imported, as are 
all textile equipment and most spare parts. Investment 
opportunities exist under the Manufacturing Under Bond 
scheme and in the Export Processing Zones for the production 
of items such as yarn and garments.

 Kenya has a basic metal 
sector making a variety of downstream products from local and 
imported steel billets and hot rolled coils. Kenya imports steel 
billets, coils, wire rod  and wires, steel plates, sheets, steel scrap 
and pig iron. The country possesses a broad based metal 
products sector with various independent engineering, foundry 
and metalwork workshops.

 The motor vehicle component 
industry is rapidly developing to supply the needs of a few 
motor vehicle assemblers to meet certain local content 
requirements. Opportunities exist for manufacture of 
components for use by local assemblers for domestic market 
and for export to regional markets

 Investment potential exists for the 
production of motors, circuit breakers, transformers, switch 
gear, irrigation pumps, capacitors, resistors, resistors, 
insulation tapes, electronic goods in Kenya, especially within 
the Manufacturing Under Bond' scheme and Export 
Processing Zone Programmes. These include the production 
of the following:
• Consumer electronic, such as colour television, Video 
Cassette Recorders (VCRs), printers, floppy disk drives and 
Disk Roms (CD-Rs)
• Telecommunication equipment, such as printed circuit 
boards, and transmission equipment;
• Support items such as cables, cords, die casting and metal 
plating.

With a labour force which is well-equipped to meet the labour 
skill requirements for the industry and the relatively large 
domestic and export market potential of electronics in the 
region, Kenya offers an enormous potential for the 
manufacturing and assembly of electronic items.

 The plastics 
industry in Kenya is well-developed and produces goods made of 
polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene, polystyrene, and 
polypropylene. All materials are imported in the form of granules.

A large number of pharmaceutical formulations are produced 
locally in the form of tablets, syrups, capsules, and injectables, 
but the bulk of pharmaceuticals is imported. There is room for 
additional investment in the pharmaceutical industry.

Many attractive investment opportunities in chemicals, 
pharmaceuticals and fertilizers remain unexploited. These 
include the production of PVC granules from ethyl alcohol; 
formaldehyde from methanol; cuprous oxychloride for coffee 
bean disease; caustic soda and chlorine based products; carbon 
black; activated carbon; precipitated calcium carbonate; textile 
dyestuff; ink for ball-point pens; and gelatine capsules.

 Opportunities exist in the 
production of glass as the country is not self-sufficient. A few 
manufacturing units produce ceramic pottery and tiles, 
sanitary-ware, and insulators are imported. Investment 
potential exists in prospecting and minning of other minerals 
such as gold, precious stones and petroleum.

 Making use of renewable 
resources, investment opportunities exist for production of 
high quality and hand carved furniture for export, high density 
board from saw dust for the domestic market, high quality 
veneers, wooden toys, sporting goods such as cricket bats and 
rackets for export, and other speciality items. Recognising the 
importance of environmental preservation programme.

The government of Kenya has made ICT a priority in its 
economic recovery strategy initiatives. With the incentives and 
benefits that Kenya has to offer, the following areas can be 
invested in:

• IT Enabled services;
• Call Centres for both inbound and outbound calls;
• Wide range of business process outsourcing activities;
• Disaster recovery;  • Software development;
• Education and Training;   • ICT habitats;
• Development of broadband infrastructure.

 To compliment all the above sectors, 
Kenya aspires to attract internationally reputable educational 
institutions, universities, and Training centres. 

The following areas exist for investment:
• Science and technology centres;
• IT centres of excellence;
• Training Centres for Hospitality industry 
• School Fashion and Design;
• R&D institutes;
• Schools for Business and International Marketing.

Source: Kenya Investment Authority : 
www.investmentkenya.com

OPPORTUNITIES IN MANUFACTURING

PAPER PRODUCTS:

TEXTILES AND APPARELS:

METAL AND ENGINEERING WORKS:

VEHICLE PARTS AND ASSEMBLY:

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT:

PLASTICS, CHEMICALS AND PHARMACEUTICALS:

MINING AND MINERALS PRODUCTS:

WOOD AND WOOD PRODUCTS:

INFORMATION COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT)

KNOWLEDGE INDUSTRY:

KENYA 
Opportunities in
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Steps

Company Registration:

* Fill the Investment Application Form.
* Engage legal advice in Kenya.
* Register your business
* Submit Application Form + Certificate of Incorporation + 
Articles and Memorandum of association to KenInvest
* Issue of the Investment License

Procedures for establishing a company in Kenya The principal 
types of business enterprises in Kenya are:
* Registered Companies (Private and Public)
* Branch offices of companies registered outside Kenya
* Partnerships* Sole Proprietorships
* Co-operatives

Companies are registered as limited liability companies as in 1 
and 2 above, and regulated by the Companies Act (Cap 486). 
Kenya's legal system is based on English law and practice. A 
wide range of legal services are locally available.

 The initial step in forming a company is 
to register the proposed company name with the Registrar of 
Companies at the Attorney General's Chambers in Nairobi. The 

Memorandum and Articles of Association should be filed with 
the Registrar of Companies who, upon satisfaction, issues the 
Certificate of Incorporation.

Opening a branch office of an overseas company: An overseas 
company wishing to open a branch office in Kenya should 
deliver the following to the Registrar of Companies:
*A certified copy of the Charter, Statutes or Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of the Company, or other instruments 
defining the constitution of the 
company;
* A list of the directors and secretary 
of the company, giving full names, 
nationality and other directorships 
of companies in Kenya;
* A statement of all existing charges 
entered into by the company 
affecting properties in Kenya;
* Names and postal addresses of one 
or more persons resident in Kenya 
authorised to accept, on behalf of 
the company, service of notices required to be served on the 
company;
* Full address of the registered or principal office of the 
company in its home country; and,
* Full address of place of business in Kenya.

Both private and public companies may allot shares for 
considerations other than cash. Companies should inform the 
Registrar of Companies of such allotments and submit a written 
contract constituting the title of the allottee.

 The Government allows investors to have key 
expatriate staff in senior management positions or where 
locals with specific skills are not available. Work permits for 
such expatriates are issued by the Immigration Department 
and are valid for one to two years, renewable on application.

 There is no import licensing 
except for a few items restricted for security, health or 
environmental reasons detailed in the Imports, Exports and 
Essential Supplies Act (Cap 502).

Work permits:

Import and export procedures:

During the Budget for Fiscal Year 2001/02 the Minister agreed 
to waive the 2.75% Import Declaration Form (IDF) fees 
applicable on imported goods used for manufacturing goods 
for exports under the Tax Remission for Export Office (TREO) 
scheme. Manufactures under the TREO will however have to 
pay Kshs. 5000 which is processing fees.

* Currency * Office hours * Legal holidays * Visas * Customs * 
Residence permit * Foreign currency * Personal belongings and 
passenger car * Embassies and general information * Forms for 

an investor or immigrant

Personal effects may be 
imported duty free. The importation 
of firearms and game trophies is 
restricted, and pornographic 
literature is prohibited. Domestic 
animals and pets may be imported 
provided they have valid veterinary 
certificates. Plants require a phyto-
sanitary certification.

 For a stay in 
Kenya exceeding 6 months, one 

must obtain a residence permit that can be delivered during the 
first stay, valid for one year. It must be renewed each time the 
work contract is renewed. The permit renewal can be valid for 
five years, each time.

To know more details visit: www.investmentkenya.com

Business Environment Doing Business: General Business 
Information

Customs: 

Residence permit:

Procedures for Establishing A Branch in Kenya

insulting to shout at anybody, even with words of 
praise. Losing one's temper, going red in the face, 
swearing or using demeaning language will be 
viewed by a Kenyan as a demonstration of poor 
upbringing and extreme weakness of character; 
and will be treated with polite embarrassment and 
disdain.

Photography: It is considered courteous to ask 
people whether you may take their picture before 
doing so, particularly in the more far-flung rural 
areas where superstition may still suggest that the 
camera is a stealer of souls. Payment for the 
photograph is often expected.

Shaking hands: Kenyans shake hands all the time 
and at every occasion; indeed it would be 
considered very impolite not to shake hands on 
meeting someone, regardless of whether you met 
the person earlier or have never met them before 
in your life. Sometimes both hands are used; 
sometimes a special handshake (involving clasped 
thumbs) is used; sometimes a very limp 
handshake is proffered (among women) or, if 
hands are wet or dirty, an elbow or forearm is 
presented for shaking instead.

Gestures and body language: Pointing with your 
finger is considered very rude, as is summoning with 
a crooked finger or beckoning with the palm up 
(beckon with the palm down). The left hand is 
traditionally reserved for unhygienic acts and the 
right hand for eating and touching or passing things.

Dress codes: In cities and towns, western business 
conventions prevail, and tailored suits, shirts and 
ties or smart casual wear for men is the norm. 
Female office workers and businesswomen 
normally wear smart suits (skirts or trousers), 
dresses and jackets or elegant separates, and 
heels. Increasingly, however, corporations 
encourage the wearing of jeans and chic casual 
wear on Fridays. At the coast and in areas where 
Muslim culture prevails, women are often veiled 
(the black cover-all is known as a “bui bui”, which 
means “spider”), and the Asian community is fairly 
equally divided into those who choose to wear the 
traditional forms of dress and those who don't. 
When in Mombasa, Malindi and Lamu, visitors 
should avoid skimpy shorts and vests in public and 
bear in mind that topless sunbathing is illegal.

Swearing: Swearing is not considered polite 
among men and is unheard of among women. 
Blasphemy is highly offensive.

Smoking: Cigarette smoking is relatively common in 
Kenya, although not among women. Cigarettes are 
exceptionally cheap and of good quality. Smoking is 
no longer permitted in public places, and violations 
are punishable by heavy fines or prison sentences.

Source: http://dcs.unon.org

DO'S  &  DON'TS: 

KENYA

tradition that the head of the community should 
enjoy exalted status and command absolute 
obedience. The President, therefore, is always 
treated with deference, and visitors should not 
attempt to take his photograph without prior 
permission from a member of his entourage. It is 
also forbidden to photograph State House or any 
military installations. When travelling, the 
President is usually transported in a fast-moving 
motorcade of official cars, usually preceded by 
police outriders, often heralded by flashing lights 
and sometimes by sirens. The moment this 
motorcade appears, everyone is required to pull as 
far off the road as they can manage and to remain 
there until the motorcade has passed.

National flag and anthem: In deference to the 
Kenyan flag, visitors should stand when it is raised or 
lowered within their field of vision. They should also 
stand when the national anthem is played. Visitors 
will find that this takes places at many events, 
including before the screening of films in cinemas.

Respect for Kenya: Kenyans are proud of their 
country and do not appreciate unwarranted 
criticism about national or local affairs from 
passing strangers. Animated but friendly 
discussion on the values of differing cultures such 
as African versus European will, however, is 
welcomed.

Respect for the law of the land: Strict legislation is 
in force on such matters as narcotics, prostitution, 
public indecency and the export of wildlife 
products, among others. In the event of legal 
difficulties visitors should remember that the 
judicial system is based on the British model, 
meaning that bond or bail can be granted at the 
police or magistrate's discretion and all cases must 
be brought before a court.

Traditional terms of address: For addressing a man, 
whether you know him or not, the accepted form of 
polite address is “Bwana”, which is a cross between 
“mister” and “sir”. For anybody clearly over 40 years 
old, the term “mzee” (“old man”) is considered a 
polite form of address, expressing respect for the 
person and his wisdom and experience. For women 
the word “mama” carries the same connotation, 
but is used for women of all ages.

Manners and visitors: Kenyans lay great emphasis 
on the need for respect and good manners. Upon 
meeting it is customary to shake hands and to 
enquire for several minutes after the health of the 
person whom you are meeting and the welfare of 
their immediate family. It is considered gravely 

Visitors should show respect to the local people by 
exercising tact, tolerance and common sense. 
Don't show disrespect for authority, starting with 
the president - don't try to take his picture or that 
of any of Kenya's other leaders, and don't tear up 
his portrait on a banknote. Don't photograph 
anyone without his or her consent - smile, waving 
your camera around and the offer of a few shillings 
are normally enough to get consent. These days, 
the Maasai are wise to the habits of tourists, and 
they may ask for up to $10 for a photo of their 
handsome profile. In reality, the going rate for one 
photograph is 10 to 50 shillings. Don't make a 
show of your wealth anywhere. The obvious 
temptation is to relieve you of some of it in one 
way or another. Don't break the law, of course. For 
tourists, the main hazards are the Exchange 
Control Act (illegal deals with money), traffic 
regulations, and prostitution, sexual offences and 
drug taking.

On Safari : Caution and common sense must be 
exercised in both national parks and reserves. The 
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife has compiled 
some rules and regulations for the protection of 
both animals and people: Stay in the car and if 
animals approach, close roofs, doors and 
windows. Touring the parks and reserves is 
restricted to daylight hours (6am to 6pm). The best 
time for game viewing is in the early morning or 
late afternoon. Driving speeds in the parks and 
reserves are limited to 30 mph, but driving more 
slowly is better as you'll be able to see more. 
Employ a ranger since they know the area and the 
animals well.

What to wear: This obviously depends on where 
you are going and what you are doing. For much of 
the year, Nairobi is like a European city in summer. 
If you are travelling on business, you'll be too hot in 
a jacket during the day, but can put it on for a smart 
dinner in the evening. June, July and August can be 
overcast and cool in the daytime and chilly at 
night, so take some warm clothing.If you are 
planning to spend most of the time on safari, you 
should bring light and casual clothes in muted 
colours, plus a hat for protection against the sun. 
For the forest lodges, you'll need to be well 
wrapped up in the evenings. Soil in Kenya is red 
and dusty just about everywhere, so clothes get 
grubby quickly. Don't bother bringing rainwear: a 
light waterproof can be picked up locally. On the 
coast, shorts are all right for visitors in Mombasa 
during the day, but the rule is to keep in mind the 
Muslim ethic for modesty in dress. This precludes 
nude or topless bathing on the beach - although 
this is sometimes practiced in flagrant breach of 
both the law and local sensibilities.

Cultural Do's and Don'ts: Presidential and 
national etiquette: It is an integral part of Kenyan 

enya vision 2030 is the country's 
development blueprint covering for a K

period from 2008 to 2030.It aims at making 
Kenya a newly industrializing, “middle income 
country providing high quality life for all its 
citizens by the year 2030”. The vision has been 
d e v e l o p e d  
through an all-
i n c l u s i v e  
s t a k e h o l d e r  
c o n s u l t a t i v e  
p r o c e s s ,  
i n v o l v i n g  
Kenyans from all 
parts  of  the  
countr y.  The  
vision is based 
o n  t h r e e  
“ p i l l a r s ”  
n a m e l y :  t h e  
economic pillar, 
the social pillar and the political pillar. This 
vision's programme comes after the successful 
implementation of the Economic recovery 
strategy for Wealth and Employment creation 
(ERS) which has seen the country's economy 
back on the path to rapid growth since 2002, 
when GDP grew at 0.6 percent rising to 6.1 
percent in 2006.

This Kenya vision 2030 envisions developing 
several economic zones in various parts of the 
country. The plan aims to produce annual 
economic growth rates of 10 percent. Currently, 
Kenya has a GDP growth of 4.9 percent. The first 
plan calls for investments in six key sectors with 
20 flagship projects.

The targeted sectors are Tourism, Agriculture, 
Manufacturing, Trade, information technology, 
and financial services.

The urban areas in Kenya will almost double by 
the year 2030, and will dominate the nation with 
more than 2 / 3 of the population being 
centered in the urban areas. The Kenyan 
government hopes that this plan will boost the 
tourism is mostly centered around safaris. The 

plan calls for 
i n c r e a s e d  
investment in 
coastal towns.

Kenya fares well 
i n  s o c i a l  
i n d i c a t o r s  
compared to  
s u b - S a h a r a n  
Africa, but it has 
to catch up with 
middle-income 
c o u n t r i e s  
especially the 
s e c o n d -

generation newly industrializing countries, such 
as Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand that 35 
years ago were at the same stage of 
development as Kenya.

Through maximum exploitation of science, 
technology and innovation, Kenya hopes to 
initiate focused interventions targeting the 
elimination of absolute poverty; improvement 
of equity and access to social services; 
promotion of private sector development 
through a regulatory framework that reduces 
the cost of doing business justice; all these 
underpinned by accountable leadership at all 
levels of government.

This path constitutes the basis for the 
development of Kenya's long-term vision for 
sustained economic and social development. 

Kenya's Vision 2030

Affluence 
India Overseas LLP

Affluence 
India Overseas LLP
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India-Kenya 
Bilateral Relations

Kenya is an East African nation with Uganda (west), South Sudan 
(northwest), Ethiopia (north), Somalia (northeast), Tanzania (south) as 

its neighbours.

Kenya gained independence from 
Britain in 1963. It has been governed 
by Presidents Jomo Kenyatta (1963-
78), Daniel arap Moi (1978-2002) and 
since 2002 by President Mwai Kibaki. 
Since 2008, Prime Minister is Rt. Hon. 
Raila Odinga. Kenyans approved a new 
constitution in a referendum on 
August 04 2010 which came into force 

on August 27 2010.

Vice President Dr. S Radhakrishnan visited Kenya in July 
1956. Smt. Indira Gandhi attended the Kenyan 
Independence celebrations in 1963. President Daniel 
arap Moi visited India in February 1981.  President 
Neelam Sanjeeva Reddy and Prime Minister Indira 
Gandhi also visited Kenya in that year.

There have been a series of high level exchanges between 
India and Kenya in recent months.

H.E. Hon. Mwai Kibaki, President of the Republic of 
Kenya, attended the 2nd India-Africa Forum Summit 
held in Addis Ababa on May 24-25, 2011. He met 
Hon’ble Prime Minister Dr. Manmohan Singh on May 
25 on the margins of the Forum Summit. The Kenyan 
delegation included Acting Foreign Minister and 
Minister for Internal Security Hon. George Saitoti and Minister for Trade 
Hon. Ambassador Chirau Ali Mwakwere. 

Hon’ble Minister for External Affairs Shri S.M. Krishna visited Nairobi on 
May 27-28, 2011. During the visit, he met with Deputy Prime Minister and 
Minister for Local Government Hon. Musalia Mudavadi. Hon’ble Minister for 

Water Resources and Parliamentary Affairs Shri 
Pawan Kumar Bansal visited Kenya during 
September 16-22 2011. During the visit he met 
Minister for Water and Irrigation of Kenya Hon. 
Ms. Charity Kaluki Ngilu.

In April/May 2011, the Vice President of Kenya, 
Hon. Stephen Kalonzo Musyoka led a business 

delegation to India during which he was invited by Indo-
African Chamber of Commerce & Inustries as a Chief 
Guest for their mega event “I for Afrika”.

INS Sarvekshak visited Mombasa from November 25-
December 4 2011 and carried out a demonstration 
hydrographic survey of an earmarked area off 
Mombasa port. 

During 2010, there were several high level political 
exchanges between India and Kenya. Kenya’s Prime 
Minister Hon. Raila Odinga met Hon’ble Prime Minister Dr. Manmohan Singh 
during a visit to India in November 2010 to attend the India Economic 

Summit organized by the World Economic Forum. 

TRADE : Bilateral trade grew by 57% to reach US$ 2.4 billion in 2010-11. 
Nearly US$ 2.3 billion constituted India’s exports to Kenya. India is 
the sixth largest trading partner of Kenya. According to Kenyan 
statistics, bilateral trade for January-November 2011 is 
approximately US$ 1.5 billion.

Main Indian exports to Kenya include pharmaceuticals, steel 
products, machinery, yarn, vehicles and power transmission 
equipment. Main Kenyan exports to India include soda ash, 
vegetables, tea, leather and metal scrap.

INVESTMENT

Tata  C h e m i ca l s  Ltd .  
a c q u i r e d  Magadi Soda Company 
Limited in 2005. Several leading 
I n d i a n  public sector insurance 
companies participate in KenIndia 
Assurance Co. Ltd. More recent 
investment s by Indian corporates in 
businesses in Kenya include Essar 
E n e r g y  (petroleum refining),  
Bharti Airtel (telecom), Reliance Industries Ltd. (petroleum retail); Tata 
(Africa) (automobiles, IT, pharmaceuticals, etc.). Several Indian firms 
including KEC, Kalpataru Power Transmission Ltd., Kirloskar Brothers Ltd., 
Mahindra & Mahindra, Thermax, WIPRO, Jain Irrigation System Ltd., Punj 
Lloyd, Emcure, Dr. Reddy, Cipla, Cadila, TVS and Mahindra Satyam, etc.,  have 
a business presence in Kenya as do the Bank of India and the Bank of Baroda.  
HDFC has a Representative Office. 

An India-Kenya Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement (DTAA) was signed in 
1989. The 2nd round of negotiations to review the DTAA was held in Nairobi 
in November 2010.

INDIAN COMMUNITY AND DIASPORA IN KENYA

Although trade links between India and East Africa go back several centuries, 
recent migration from India took place in the 19th and early 20th centuries 
initially via Zanzibar and Lamu and then through Mombasa. Indians were 
brought in large numbers to work on the Uganda Railroad. Merchants, 
artisans and others followed. Eventually, a vibrant community of persons of 
Indian origin emerged. 

The Indian Diaspora in Kenya, estimated at around 250,000 in 1960s, today 
numbers approximately 70,000 persons. The community is well established 
in trade, industry and the professions. Many Indian professionals also work 
with MNCs and Indian companies in Kenya.

Source: www.mea.gov.in

SOURCES OF FURTHER

INFORMATION

PUBLIC SECTOR

Investment Promotion Centre 2
National Bank Building,
8th Floor, Harambee Avenue,
P.O. Box 55704, Nairobi,
City Square, 00200
Tel.: 254 20 221 401-4
Fax: 254 20 243 862
Web: www.investmentkenya.com
www.ipckenya.org

Ministry of Agriculture
Kilimo Hse, Cathedral Road
Nairobi, Tel.: 254 20 271 8870
Fax: 254 20 272 0586
Website: www.agriculture.go.ke
Ministry of Energy
Nyayo House, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 330 048
Website: www.energy.go.ke
Ministry of Environment and
Natural Resources
Maji Hse, Ngong Road, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 271 6103
Website: www.environment.go.ke
Ministry of Finance
Treasury Building, Nairobi

Tel.: 254 20 338 111
Website: www.treasury.go.ke
Ministry of Land and Housing
Ardhi House, Ngong Road
Tel.: 254 20 271 8050
Website: www.lands.go.ke
Ministry of Planning and
National Development
Treasury Building, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 338 111
Website: www.planning.go.ke
Ministry of Roads and Public
Works
Ministry of Works Building,
Nairobi, Tel.: 254 20 272 3101/88
Web: www.publicworks.go.ke
Ministry of Trade and Industry
Teleposta Towers, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 315 001-7
Web: www.tradeandindustry.go.ke

Attorney General's Chambers
State Law Office, P.O. Box 40112
Nairobi, Tel.: 254 20 227 461
Commissioner of Customs and
Excise
Forodha Hse, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 271 5540
Fax: 254 20 271 8417
Commissioner of Income Tax
Times Towers

OTHER PUBLIC 

INSTITUTIONS

Haile Selassie Avenue, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 272 7430
Commissioner of Insurance
Anniversary Towers
University Way, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 330 428
Commissioner of Lands
Lands Department
Ardhi House, Ngong Road,
Nairobi, Tel.: 254 20 271 8050
Commissioner of Value Added
Tax
Times Towers
Haile Selassie Avenue, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 224 275
Export Processing Zones
Authority (EPZA)
P.O. Box 50563-00200
Nairobi, Tel.: 254 20 271 2801/6
Fax: 254 20 271 3704
E-mail. info@epzakenya.com
epzahwq@africaonline.co.ke
Website: www.epzakenya.com
Kenya Bureau of Standards
P.O. Box 54974, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 502 210-2
Fax: 254 2503 293
E-mail: info@kebs.org
Website: www.kebs.org
Kenya Industrial Property
Institute
Weights and Measures Building
South C, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 602 210/602 211

E-mail: 
Kenya Revenue Authority
Times Towers, Haile Selassie 
Avenue, Nairobi

kipi@swiftkenya.com

Tel.: 254 20 310 900/315 553
Nairobi City Council
City Hall, City Hall Way, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 224 2 82, Fax: 254 20 218 
291/214 780
Principal Immigration Officer
Immigration Department
Nyayo House, Nairobi, Tel.: 254 20 
333 531
Registrar of Companies
Sheria House, Harambee 
Avenue, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 227 461
Tana & Athi River Development 
Authority
P.O. Box 47309-00100, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 535 834/5, 
Fax: 254 20 535 832/3
E-mail: tarda@swiftkenya.com
Telkom Kenya Ltd
Telposta Towers, 
Kenyatta Avenue, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 323 2000, 
Fax: 254 20 243 338
E-mail: marketing@telkom.co.ke
Website: www.telkom.co.ke

Eastern Africa Association
Jubilee Place, 5th Floor, 
Mama Ngina Street
P.O. Box 41272-00100, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 340 341/214 898, 

PRIVATE SECTOR

Fax: 254 20 340 341
E-mail: eaa@africaonline.co.ke
Website: www.eaa-ion.co.uk
Federation of Kenya Employers
Tel.: 254 20 272 1929, 
Fax: 254 20 272 1990
E-mail: fke@arcc.or.ke
Kenya Association of 
Manufacturers
Peponi Road, Westlands
P.O. Box 30225-00100, Nairobi.
Tel.: 254 20 374 6005/7, 
Fax: 254 20 374 6028/30
E-mail: kam@iconnect.co.ke
Web: www.kenyamanufacturers.org
Kenya Institute for Public
Policy Research and Analysis
Bishop's Garden Towers, 1st Floor
Bishop Road, P.O. Box 56445-00200, 
Nairobi.
Tel.: 254 20 271 9933/4, 
Fax: 254 20 271 9951
E-mail: admin@kippra.or.ke
Kenya Private Sector Alliance
P.O. Box 3556-00100, Nairobi.
Tel.: 254 20 273 0371/2, 
Fax: 254 20 273 0374
E-mail: psforum@kippra.org
Port Management Association
of Eastern and Southern Africa
Archbishop Makarios Rd, Mombasa
Fax: 254 20 228 344
E-mail: pmaesa@africaonline.co.ke
Tea Board of Kenya
Tea Board House
Naivasha Road - Off Ngong Road
PO Box 20064, Nairobi
Tel.: 254 20 572 421, Fax-20 562 120
E-mail: teaboard@Form-net.com

Tea Growers Association of Kenya
P.O. Box 320, Kericho
Tel.: 254 52 20039, Fax: 254 52 32172

The Kenya National Chamber of 
Commerce
and Industry - Mombasa
Kaunda Avenue - Kizingo
Mombasa, P. O. Box 80635 - 80100
E-mail: info@kenyachamber.co.ke
Telephone: +254 41 2316161
Mobile : +254721373343
Web:

High Commission of Kenya in 
India
H.E PROF. FESTUS KABERIA,
High Commissioner
High Commission of The Republic 
of Kenya,
34, Paschimi Marg, Vasant Vihar,
New Delhi - 110057, INDIA
Telephone: +91-11-26146537/38/40
Fax: +91-11-26146550
Email: info@kenyamission-delhi.com
Website: www.kenyamission-
delhi.com
Honorary Consul of the Republic 
of Kenya
R. A. Goenka Honorary Consul
Consulate of Kenya

Chamber of Commerce in 

Kenya

http://www.kenyachamber.co.ke

46, Baja Bhawan, 4th Floor, 
Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400021
Tel : (22) 22029130 / 22029022
Fax : (22)22850352
High Commission of India, Nairobi
H.E Sibabrata Tripathi, High 
Commissioner
Jeevan Bharati Bldg, Harambee
Avenue, PO Box No.30074, Nairobi.
Tel : 00-254-20-2222566/7, 2225104,
Fax : 00-254-20-316242, 
2248320, 2211164
E-mail : hcindia@kenyaweb.com 
(HOC);
dhcindia@kenyaweb.com (Dy. HOC)
Website : www.hcinairobi.co.ke
Asst: High Commission of India, 
Mombasa
Bank of India Building, 3rd Floor,
Nkrumah Rd, PO Box No. 90164, 
Mombasa, Kenya.
Tel: 00-254-41-2224433, 2311051
Fax : 00-254-41-2316740
E-Mail : hoc.mombasa@mea.gov.in 
(HOC);
cimsa@swiftmombasa.com 
(General);
ahc.mombasa@mea.gov.in 
(Asst HOC)
Website : www.hcinairobi.co.ke

USEFUL ADDRESSES
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